

DESIGNING SHIPS TO THE NATURAL ENVIRONMENT

Susan L. Bales Head, Ocean Environment Group Surface Ship Dynamics Branch Ship Performance Department David W. Taylor Naval Ship R&D Center April 1982

Approved for Public Release Distribution Unlimited

The views expressed herein are the personal opinions of the author and are not necessarily the official views of the Department of Defense or of the Department of the Navy.

ABSTRACT

Until recently, the natural environment has played a very minor role in ship design. The consideration of ship performance in the prevailing environment was focused primarily on optimization of calm water resistance and other factors related to the ship's propulsion system. During the 1970's, the Navy recognized the need to "design in" better ship performance and initiated the R&D efforts necessary to establish a technology base for doing so.

This paper outlines the state-of-the-art for environmental (primarily wave) modelling in the emerging seakeeping performance oriented design procedures. The sensitivity of the skip system to the environment is briefly examined. A standard procedure for specifying wave and wind conditions for ship design is recommended. Revision of U.S. Navy applied Sea State numeral definitions is discussed. A standard for specifying Sea State occurrences is offered as a new design tool.

i

Ľ

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

d

ABSTRACT	
LIST OF TABLES	
LIST OF FIGURES	,
DEFINITIONS	,
INTRODUCTION	
SHIP PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT	}
SHIP SENSITIVITY TO THE NATURAL ENVIRONMENT	ļ
Waves	ŀ
Winds	ŀ
Rain	•
STATE-OF-THE-ART IN WAVE MODELS	ł
Open Ocean Spectra	;
Fetch-Limited, Coastal, or Shallow Water Spectra 5	;
Model	;
SEA STATE DEFINITIONS	5
SEA STATE STANDARD	,
SUMMARY	1
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS	3
REFERENCES	•

ii

LIST OF TABLES

1

Table	Page
l - Typical Top Level Requirement (TLR)	11
2 - Natural Environment Versus Ship Function	12
3 - Beaufort Wind Scale With Corresponding Sea State Codes	13
4 - Wave and Sea Scale for Fully Arisen Seas (Neumann)	14
5 - Old (Neumann, Pierson-Moskowitz) Versus New (WMO) Sea State Definitions	15
6 - Annual Sea State Occurrences in the Open Ocean North Atlantic .	16
7 - Annual Sea State Occurrences in the Open Ocean North Pacific	17
8 - Annual Sea State Occurrences in the Open Ocean Northern Hemisphere	18

iii

LIST OF FIGURES

Figure	Page
1 - One Comparison of U.S. and Soviet Destroyer Seakeeping (Soviet Kotlin-Class Destroyer on Right, U.S. 710 Class on Left)	19
2 - Outline of Seakeeping Performance Assessment Methodology	20
3 - Typical Performance Figure of Merit (Comparison of Ship VTO Functional Capability)	21
4 - Old (Neumann, Pierson-Moskowitz) Versus New (WMO) Sea State Definitions	22
5 - Sea State Percent Frequencies of Exceedance for North Atlantic, North Pacific, and Northern Hemisphere	23
6 - Modal Wave Period Ranges Versus Sea State for the North Atlantic and North Pacific	24
7 - Most Probable Modal Periods Versus Sea State for the North Atlantic, North Pacific, and Northern Hemisphere	25
8 - Estimated Modal Wave Periods for the Northern Hemisphere	26

iv

DEFINITIONS

CCA	Combatant Capability Assessment
Fully-Developed	A seaway which can grow no further regardless of wind duration
Modal Wave Period	The wave period associated with the peak energy of the density wave spectrum
Significant Wave Height	The wave height associated with the average of the one-third highest crest-to-trough waves in a wave record.
SS	Sea State
TI.R	Top Level Requirement

v

н #1

×

الك ما ا

INTRODUCTION

Remarkable as it may seem, until the 1970's, the U.S. Navy rarely considered the natural environment in the design of its surface ships. Even more remarkable is the fact that no ships have been lost due to excessive environmental loadings since Admiral Halsey's flotilla encountered the catastrophic typhoon of 1944 in the Western Pacific, see Reference 1. While one might argue that such losses just couldn't occur during peacetime operations, it is true that even in peacetime, millions of dollars a year are expended for ship and aircraft repairs caused by excessive wave and wind loadings, see Reference 2.

Over the years, naval hull forms have been designed primarily for calm water performance, e.g., by optimization of calm water ship resistance and other factors related to the ship's propulsion system. However, in the 1970's, it became clear that often our ships just could not keep up with those of our adversaries or even our allies in moderate to heavy weather conditions. In the early 1970's, CAPT J.W. Kehoe alerted us to our poor performance with a comparison of U.S. and U.S.S.R destroyer seakeeping behavior, see Reference 3:

"IN 1967, WHILE STEAMING IN HEAVY WEATHER INTO HEAD SEAS, THE COMMANDER OF A U.S. NAVY DESTROYER SQUADRON IN THE MEDITERRANEAN NOTED HIS DD-445, DD-682, AND DD-710 CLASS DESTROYERS TAKING SOLID GREEN WATER OVER THE BOW AND VERY HEAVY SPRAY ON THE BRIDGE. THE SOVIET KOTLIN-CLASS DESTROYER OPERATING IN CLOSE PROXIMITY TO THE CARRIER TASK GROUP APPEARED TO BE TAKING NO WATER OVER THE BOW AND ONLY OCCASIONALLY RAISED SPRAY ABOVE THE FO'C'S'LE DECK EDGE. U.S. SAILORS WORE FOUL WEATHER GEAR AND STAYED OFF THE FO'C'S'LE; SOVIET SAILORS PARADED ON THE FO'C'S'LE IN THEIR SHIRTSLEEVES."

Figure 1 illustrates the conditions which Kehoe describes. In 1975, VADM R.E. Adamson, Jr., then Commander, Naval Surface Forces Atlantic (COMNAVSURFLANT), stressed the gravity of the problem at the Seakeeping Workshop held at the U.S. Naval Academy, see Reference 4:

"SEAKEEPING, AS IT PERTAINS TO THE U.S. NAVY, IS THE ABILITY OF OUR SHIPS TO GO TO SEA, AND SUCCESSFULLY AND SAFELY EXECUTE THEIR MISSION DESPITE ADVERSE ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS.

AS WE KNOW, A SHIP IS MORE THAN JUST A PLATFORM WITH EQUIPMENT. IT IS HER PEOPLE, OUR SAILORS, WHO WILL IN NO SMALL MEASURE DETERMINE THE SUCCESS OR FAILURE OF THE SHIP'S MISSION. I USED THE TERM "ADVERSE ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS". IN THIS CONNECTION I REALIZE ONLY TOO WELL THAT THERE ARE LIMITS AS TO HOW FAR WE CAN OR SHOULD GO IN DESIGNING A SHIP SO AS TO COPE WITH THE ENVIRONMENT. FOR EXAMPLE, I COULD NOT EXPECT A SHIP TO BE ONE HUNDRED PERCENT READY WHILE SHE IS CAUGHT IN A TYPHOON OR HURRICANE.

NOW LET ME GIVE YOU A RECENT EXAMPLE OF HOW "SEAKEEPING" ABILITY HAS AFFECTED OUR SHIPS. ON A FLEET EXERCISE CONDUCTED SEVERAL MONTHS AGO, OUR SHIPS WERE SIMPLY NO MATCH AGAINST THE SEA AND WINDS FOR WHICH THE NORTH ATLANTIC IS NOTORIOUS. OUR COMMANDERS AND COMMANDING OFFICERS WERE FORCED TO FOREGO MANY OF THE OBJECTIVES OF THE EXERCISE IN ORDER TO ACCOMMODATE TO THE WEATHER. IN SOME CASES: OUR SHIPS WERE FORCED TO SLOW TO PREVENT OR LESSEN THE IMPACT OF DAMAGE, EXERCISES WERE CANCELLED, WE COULD NOT REFUEL OUR SHIPS, EQUIPMENT WAS DAMAGED AND PERSONNEL WERE INJURED.

HOWEVER, SEVERAL SOVIET WARSHIPS WHICH WERE IN COMPANY AS OBSERVERS DID NOT APPEAR TO SUFFER THE SAME DEGREE OF DEGRADATION WE DID. THEY STEAMED SMARTLY AHEAD AND APPARENTLY WITHOUT DIFFICULTY. FURTHERMORE, IT WAS FOUND THAT WE SIMPLY DO NOT FARE AS WELL REGARDING THE SEAKEEPING ABILITY OF OUR SHIPS WHEN COMPARED TO SHIPS OF OUR ALLIES.

GOING TO SEA IS AN ADVENTURE. HOWEVER, WE ARE, IN ESSENCE, ASKING OUR SALL ORS TO BATTLE NOT ONLY A POTENTIAL ENEMY THREAT ON THE SEAS, BUT THE SEAS THEMSELVES.

WE MUST DO BETTER. WITH OUR NAVY DOWN TO ITS PRESENT RELATIVELY LEAN (VERY LEAN) SIZE, THE SHIPS WE INTRODUCE FOR THE FUTURE MUST HAVE EVERY TECHNOLOGICAL EDGE POSSIBLE IN ORDER TO ENSURE THE SUCCESS OF THAT SHIP'S MISSION. OUR ERST-WHILE FOES SEEM TO BE DOING RATHER WELL. I CERTAINLY HOPE WE WILL DO BETTER."

As a result of this focus, several options to remedy the situation were identified:

- 1. Improve ship design through performance assessment (e.g., translate mission requirements into seakeeping performance requirements, integrate assessment technology into the design process for all ship types, and improve/develop combatant capability assessment (CCA) technology).
- 2. Improve environmental support to the fleet (e.g., onboard instrumentation, global and nested area long term forecasting, climatology, and operational guidance (identify ship behavior and mission sensitivity to the prevailing environment)).
- 3. Adopt novel or advanced ship types.
- 4. Adopt larger convenzional ships.
- 5. Adopt optimum hull forms (e.g., synthesis of best hull geometry for both seakeeping and resistance).

Continuing research and development have permitted most of these options to impact recent ship designs. The progress is largely due to several exploratory development programs administered by the Naval Sea Systems Command and executed by the David W. Taylor Naval Ship R&D Center. This paper summarizes the results of some of the efforts aimed at developing the first option, i.e., improved ship design through performance assessment. In particular, the state-of-the-art for modelling the environment for naval ship performance assessment is outlined. The utilization of Sea State descriptors is discussed and percent frequencies of occurrence for the North Atlantic and North Pacific are introduced. A Sea State chart applicable to the open ocean Northern Hemisphere is offered as a design standard.

SHIP PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT

Before proceeding, a few words must be said about the requirement for environmental data in ship design.

Naval ships must survive and withstand two environmental forcing functions in order to accomplish their missions. These environmental loadings consist of the man-induced threat and the prevailing natural environment factors which influence the ship's activity and performance.

Ship performance assessment methodology has evolved substantially in the past seven years and is depicted in Figure 2. The methodology permits the ship designer to address specific requirements such as those illustrated in the Top Level Requirement (TLR) of Table 1. For example, for the given ship configuration and specified environment, ship responses (e.g., roll angle) are predicted using standard techniques, see Reference 5. If they exceed the given criterion (such as 5 degrees for operation of embarked helicopters), then the operability in that condition is considered degraded. In short, mission requirements are translated into seakeeping performance requirements. The natural environment must be specified here in order to define the total operating environment.

An example of a recent effort to compare the relative ability of a variety of notional and real ship designs to operate aircraft is given in Figure 3, from Reference 6. The results indicate degraded operability in Sea States 4, 5, and 6 for some ships for Vertical Take-Off and Landing (VTOL) operations.

Other examples of performance assessment are found throughout the literature, and a methodology review is provided in Reference 7. Clearly, performance assessment results are only as reliable as the input sets defined in Figure 2. The deficiencies of these sets are addressed in Reference 4, and hence will not be restated here. The research undertaken since 1975 to improve the natural environment inputs is described in internal Navy program planning documents. Specific results of recent Navy environmental research and development efforts are found in References 8 to 16.

SHIP SENSITIVITY TO THE NATURAL ENVIRONMENT

Table 2, from Reference 9, defines probable environmental factors which degrade ship performance. The table can be simplified, however. In short, it is hypothesized that the three most important surface environmental degraders to naval systems are:

- 1. Waves
- 2. Winds
- 3. Precipitation (rain)

Waves

Surface(d) ships are degraded by the combined effects of wave height, wave period (or length), and wave direction. Taken together, these three variables describe a Sea State. Greater ship performance degradation in lower Sea States can occur depending upon the combination of height, period, and directional properties. In general, the designer requires the following resolution for both sea (local wind driven) and swell (from decaying local winds or distant storms) waves:

- 1. Height + 0.3 meter (1 foot) of significant wave height
- Period + 1 second of modal wave period for at least the corresponding range of wave lengths of 0.75 to 1.25 of the ship length
- Direction + 7.5 degrees for each frequency (or period) component of the seaway.

Winds

Wind loadings on surface ships can introduce drift forces which retard stationkeeping functions. Like waves, winds also introduce structural damage to topside equipments. While a modelling capability in this area is clearly desirable, one does not exist except for higher altitudes than are pertinent to the ship structure. In fact, the only existing near surface wind models have been developed for civil engineering applications over land (e.g., skyscraper design). The resolution required for a marine model is unknown, except, of a course, that small scal gustiness factors should be included.

Rain

Clearly, rain degrades sensors and other systems. For most combatant capability assessments, a rain drop size of about 2 mm is assumed.

Most of the remainder of this paper is focused on wave environment modelling which is certainly the single most important environmental degrader (excluding fouling) of ship hull performance.

STATE-OF-THE-ART IN WAVE MODELS

Wave modelling is described in detail in Reference 14. The reference provides a standard for conducting comparisons of predicted performance of NATO ships. It outlines current U.S. Navy practice and contains a data base of seasonal wave and wind statistics for NATO waters. The state-of-the-art in wave modelling in the U.S. Navy is described in such sufficient detail in Reference 14 that it is only briefly stated here.

and a state of the the second second with the second second second second second second second second second se

Open Ocean Spectra

Bretschneider two-parameter wave spectra are employed. The spectra are defined by the two parameters significant wave height and modal wave period. For operationally average values, the spectra are treated with a cosine squared spreading function about + 90 degrees. This produces a spectrum representative of short-created seas. Otherwise, worst case or long-created spectra are retained. Only unimodal seas are modelled.

Fetch-Limited, Coastal, or Shallow Water Spectra

A modified JONSWAP spectrum is employed. It too is defined by significant wave height and modal wave period. Generally, only long-crested seas are considered, though, there is some suggestion that higher-ordered cosine functions may provide good directional representation, see Reference 16.

Mode 1

For many U.S. Navy design support evaluations, e.g., to address TLR's, the following steps provide sufficient wave inputs:

- 1. Determine Sea State(s) in which missions must be performed with some degree of success
- 2. Identify significant wave height end modal wave period pairs associated with those Sea States
- 3. Develop either Bretschneider or JONSWAP wave spectra using the wave height and wave period pairs (long- or short-crested) for implementation in the met. odology outlined in Figure 2.
- 4. Develop percent times of operation by application of the percent frequencies of occurrence of the wave height and period pairs (Figure 3 was thusly developed).

An important feature here is that the first step really drives all of the rest. The initial specification of Sea State has the most important impact on the prediction of seakeeping performance. It is recognized that the use of Sea State numeral tables is a widespread practice employed by operators to describe wave and wind conditions. It is also recognized that many different tables are in use by naval, government, and maritime organizations throughout the world. This can lead to misunderstanding and poor communication, see Reference 17. A nationally, if not internationally, recognized standard is clearly required.

SEA STATE DEFINITIONS

In the early nineteenth century Admiral Beaufort of the British Navy invented a system for estimating and reporting wind speeds, see Reference 18. The system was originally based on the effects of various wind speeds on the amount of canvas that a full-rigged frigate of the period could carry. It has since been modified, see Table 3 from Reference 19, and equates Beaufort force (or number) and wind speed to the state of the sea. Even in this century, shipboard observers have used the table to estimate wind speeds (e.g., ships without wind measuring devices). Table 3 includes a Sea State numeral definition still in worldwide use today. In fact, the World Meteorological Organization (WMO) has endorsed this definition as an international standard.

However, it is noted that for some decades, the U.S. Navy has utilized a Sea State definition based upon the relationships between wird speed and significant wave height for fully-developed seas, see Tables 4. Table 4 was developed by Wilbur Marks using the Neumann wind/wave relationship. The Neumann wind speed versus wave height relationship assumes the winds to be averaged at 7.5 m above the surface. This wind/wave relationship was superceeded by the Pierson-Moskowitz formulation in the late 1950's and Table 4 was thence modified for higher Sea States.

During a recent survey of NATO nations with regard to environmental modelling, it became clear that most nations have adopted the WMO standard. Therefore it was utilized in some recent U.S. Navy work, see Reference 15, which provides a data base of wave and wind conditions for NATO waters. Further inquiry, e.g., Reference 20, led to the observation that U.S. Navy operators also use the WMO standard and to the conclusion that the U.S. Navy design and research communities are probably the sole remaining users of Table 4 (or its modified version for higher-Sta States). Consideration of a change of practice is suggested.

Table 5 and Figure 4 provide comparisons of the old (Pierson-Moskowitz based) and new (WMO) Sea State numeral definitions. Figure 4 also compares the mean significant wave height values at each Sea State for each definition. Frequently, TLR's indicate required performance for Sea States 4, 5, and 6, see Table 1. Fortunately, the variation between the definitions of these three is not very substantial, see Figure 4. However, the older definition indicates higher wave heights for both lower and higher Sea States.

In general, the initial definition of required performance for a new ship design is in terms of Sea State. Thus the importance of Sea State definition is in the identification of significant wave heights for which seakeeping performance is assessed. The older definition of Sea State potentially permits the overprediction of performance degradation in lower and higher Sea States. Generally, Sea States below State 4 are considered unimportant to performance so the former is not significant. However, the later implies overprediction of failures in heavy weather. Generally, only limited capability is expected in Sea States 7 and above, see Table 1.

Considering that the impact upon current design practice is not substantial, it is recommended that the new (WMO) Sea State definition be adopted by the U.S. Navy design and research communities. This permits much more effective communication with our operators and with other NATO nations.

SEA STATE STANDARD

Table 6 provides annual percentage probabilities of occurrence for each Sea State in the North Atlantic. It also identifies associated modal wave period ranges. The table was developed using hindcasting techniques described elsewhere, see Reference 14. Table 7 provides similar data for the North Pacific. It was also developed using hindcasting techniques.

Figure 5 provides a comparison of the Sea Sate occurrences in the two basins. Clearly, the North Pacific is a more hostile operating region. If the exceedances for the two are averaged (treating basin size as negligible), the occurrences associated with the open ocean Northern Hemisphere result.

Figure 6 provides a comparison of the model wave periods associated with each Sea State. Generally, the North Pacific provides a richer (broader) range of periods and they tend to be somewhat longer than those in the North Atlantic, which is probably due to the greater fetch. However, for Sea States 7 and above, somewhat longer wave periods are noted in the North Atlantic. The reason for this is unclear and warrants further investigation.

Figure 7 compares the most probable modal wave period for each Sea State and basin. The most probable modal wave period is frequently used in association with the mean significant wave height of the Sea State (e.g., as was the case in Figure 3 and as described in Table 1). A faired line through the data points provides a Sea State versus most probable modal wave period for the Northern Hemisphere. Figure 8, derived from Figure 6, provides an estimated summary of the modal wave period ranges for the Hemisphe.

Table 8 provides a complete summary of estimated Sea State occurrences for the Northern Hemisphere. The table is recommended for generic application to ship design problems. It provides the only known (to this author) large area Sea State occurrence data. The table provides useful data for TLR definition and together with specific percentage frequencies of occurrences of modal wave period, can be applied in all of the available naval seakeeping performance assessment methodologies. The table replaces a previous one, based solely on the North Atlantic and Sea State numerals of dubious universal acceptance.

SUMMARY

Table 8 is recommended as a design standard for specifying open ocean wave conditions in the Northern Hemisphere.

ACKNOWLE DGEMENTS

The author gratefully acknowledges the assistance of Mr. Wah T. Lee of the David W. Taylor Naval Ship R&D Center for his assistance in the preparation of Tables 6 and 7 and of Ms. Dana M. Gentile of ORI, Inc. for her assistance in manuscript preparation.

REFERENCES

- 1. Calhoun, R.C., Typhoon: The Other Enemy, U.S. Naval Institute Press, Annapolis, 1981.
- Bucklay, W.H., "Results of Review of Navy Ship Heavy Weather Damage Information Obtained from Naval Safety Center, "Internal Memo 77-173-M29, Structures Department, DTNSRDC, 27 January 1977.
- Kehoe, J.W., "Destroyer Seakeeping: Ours and Theirs," <u>Proceedings</u>, U.S. Naval Institute, Vol. 99., No. 11/849, pp. 26-37, November 1973.
- 4. "Seakeeping in the Ship Design Process," Report of the Seakeeping Workshop at the U.S. Naval Academy, NAVSEA Research and Technology Directorate Report, July 1975.
- 5. Meyers, W.G., T.R. Applebee, and A.E. Baitis, "User's Manual for the Standard Ship Motion Program, SMP," Report DTNSRDC/SPD-0936-01, September 1981.
- Comstock, E.N., S.L. Bales, and D.M. Gentile, "Seakeeping Performance Comparison of Air Capable Ships," to be presented at ASNE Day '82, 6 May 1982.
- 7. Comstock, E.N. and R.G. Keane, Jr., "Seakeeping by Design, "Naval Engineers Journal, Vol. 92, No. 2, pp. 157-178, April 1980.
- 8. Bales, S.L. and W.E. Cummins, "Wave Data Requirements for Ship Design and Operation," in <u>Ocean Wave Climate</u>, M.D. Earle and A. Malahoff, Eds., Plenum Press, New York and London, 1979.
- Bales, S.L. and E.W. Foley, "Atlas of Naval Operational Environments: The Natural Marine Environment," Report DTNSRDC/SPD-0795-01, September 1979.
- Lee, W.T. and S.L. Bales, "Development of Consistent Natural Environment Parameter Sets for Combatant Capability Assessment (CCA)," Report DTNSRDC/SPD-0795-02, March 1980.
- 11. Lee, W.T. and S.L. Bales, "A Modified JONEWAP Spectrum Dependent Only on Wave Height and Period," Report DTNSRDC/SPD-0918-01, May 1980.
- 12. Cummins, W.E. and S.L. Bales, "Extreme Value and Rare Occurrence Statistics for Northern Hemispheric Shipping Lanes," <u>Proceedings</u>, Fifth SNAME Ship Technology and Research (STAR) Symposium, Coronado, California, June 1980.
- 13. Bales, S.L., W.E. Cummins, and E.N. Comstock, "Potential Impact of Twenty Year Hindcast Wind and Wave Climatology," presented at the 17 September 1980 meeting of the Chesapeake Section of THE SOCIETY OF NAVAL ARCHITECTS AND MARINE ENGINEERS.

K

- 14. Bales, S.L., W.T. Lee, and J.M. Voelker, "Standardized Wave and Wind Environments for NATO Operational Waters," Report DTNSRDC/ SFD-0919-01, July 1981.
- 15. Cummins, W.E., S.L. Bales, and D.M. Gentile, "Hindcasting Woves for Engineering Applications," presented at International Symposium on Hydrodynamics in Ocean Engineering, Trondheim, August 1981.
- 16. Lai, R.J., and S.L. Bales, "Effects of Shoaling Zone on Wave Transformation and Ship Motion," to be presented at First International Conference on Meteorology and Air/See Interaction of the Coastal Zone, The Hague, 10-14 May 1982.
- 17. "Report of the Seakeeping Committee," <u>Proceedings</u>, 14th International Towing Tank Conference, Vol. 4, September 1975.
- "A Glossary of Ocean Science and Undersea Technology Terms," L.M. Hunt and D.G. Groves, Eds., Compass Publications, Arlington, Virginia, 1965.
- 19. Bowditch, Nathaniel, "American Practical Navigator, An Epitome of Navigation," Pub. No. 9, Defense Mapping Agency Hydrog: phic Center, reprinted 1977.
- 20. Personal Communication with Naval Oceanographic Command Detachment, Asheville, N.C., January 1980.

8° - 10° **Roll Angle** Allowed 15° NA Max. ۍ و ۰ 4 Sea State 8 and Above (Significant Wave Height 51 Feet or Greater, Wind Velocity, 63 Knots or Greater) Ship Takes Best Heading. Sea State 6 (Significant Wave Height 16.9 Feet, Wind Velocity 30 Knots) All Ship Headings. Sea State 7 (Significant Wave Height 30.6 Feet, Wind Velocity 44 Knots) Ship Takes Best Sea State 5 (Significant Wave Height 10.2 Feet, Wind Velocity 20 Knots) Ship Takes Best Sea State 5 (Significant Wave Height 10.2 Feet, Wind Velocity 20 Knots) Ship Takes Best Environmental Conditions * Heading for Lamps Helicopters. Heading. Heading. • • • • ø Limited Operation and Capability of Continuing Its Mission Without Returning to Port for Repairs Replenishment and Operation of Embarked Survivability Without Serious Damage to Mission-Essential Subsystems Continuous Efficient Operation/Without Performance Requirements Replenish and Strikedown Underway Significant Degradation (Other Than Operation of Embarked Helicopters After Sea Subsides Helicopters)

•

•

*Using Old Sea State Numeral Definitions (e.g. See Figure 4 and Table 5.)

TYPICAL TOP LEVEL REQUIREMENT (TLR) **TABLE 1**

1

2

	Speed	• Maneuverability	Detection and Communication Systems (Radar, Helo, etc.)	Defense (Weapons)	Ship Tactics*
Sea Surface Wave height, period, direction (currents)	×	×		×	×
Surface Winds Wind speed, direction	×	×		×	×
Visibility			x	×	×
Cloud Cover			x	×	×
Ceiling Height			×		×
Precipitation			×	×	×
Fog			×	×	×
Humidity			×	×	×
Temperature			×		×
Sea Level Pressure			×		×
Storm	×	×	×	×	×
Ice Concentration	×	×			×
Superstructure Icing	×	x	×	×	×
Refractivity Profile			×		×
Ducting			×		×
Ionispheric Data			×		×
*Nominally, ship tactical decision which impacts any ship function	is can be in 1.	ıfluenced by any en	vironmental paramete	Ŀ	

١

à

ių.

ĺ.

1

E

ĸ

TABLE 3 BEAUFORT WIND SCALE WITH CORRESPONDING SEA STATE CODES

ပိုင် • -3 ----Term and height of waves, in meters Sea State Smooth, WBVe-lets, 0.1-0.5 Calm, glassy. 0 Phenomenal. over 14 Calm, rip-pled, 0-0.1 Rough, 2.5-6 Very rough. 4-6 Very high. 9-14 Slight. 0.5-3.75 Moderate. 1.25-2.6 Hıgh, 6-9 Wind felt on face; leaves rustle; vanes begin to move. Leaves, small twigs in constant mo-tion; light flags extended. Dust, haves, and loose paper raised up; small brancher move. Larger branches of trees in motion; whist ing heard in wires. Twice and small branches broken of trees progress generally impeded. Seldora experienced on land; trees broken or uprooted; considerable structural damage occurs. Very marely experienced on lund; usually accompanied by widespread damage. Smoke drift indicates wind direction; vanes do not move. Whole (rees in motion; resistance felt in walking against wind. Slight structural damage occurs; siste blown from roofs. Smail trees in leaf begin to sway. Effects observed on land Calm. smoke rises vertically. Smacks begin to careen and travel about 3-4 miles per hour. Smacks remain in harbor and those at sea lie-to. Wind fills the sails of smacks which then travel at about 1-2 miles per hour. 1.ood working breeze, smacks carry all canvas with good list. WITH CORRESPONDING SEA STATE CODES Fishing smack just has steenage way. Smacks have doubled reef in malusail, care required when fishing. All smacks make for harber, if near, Effects observed near coast Estimating wind speed **BEAUFORT WIND SCALE** Smacks shorten sail. C. E Sea heaps up: white foam from break-ing wayes begins to he blown in streaks. Ripples with apprarance of scales; no form crests. Large warelets, crests begin to break. scattered whitecaps. Larger waves forming; whitecaps everywhere; more spras Very high waves with overhanging crests, sea takes white appearance as foam is blown in very dense streaks, folling is heary and visi-bility reduced. Small warelets, crests of glassy ap-pearance, not breaking. Small waves, becoming longer, numer-ous whiteraps. Moderate waves, taking longer form, many whitecaps, some spray. Moderately high waves of greater length rdges of creats brain to break into spindrift, foam is blown in well-markell streaks. Exceptionally high warses; sea covered with white foam patches; visibility still more reduced. Air filled with foam; sea completely white with driving spray; visibility greatly reduced. High waves, sea begins to roll, dense streaks of foam; spray may reduce visibility. Effects observed far from land Sea like murror Hurricane Moderate breeze f icht air Near gale World Meteoro-logical Organi-zation Light breeze (lentle breeze Fresh breeze Violent storm Strong Calm Strong gal-Storm (iale 201-68 103 117 62-74 19-92 19-92 118 and over under l 6-11 12-19 Я Я 8 2 hour hour 61-62 19-05 ŝ 30. 8-24. 4 24.5-24.4 28.5-32.6 8.0-10.7 17.2.29.7 10. 8-13. 5 0.3-1.5 3.4-5.4 13.9 17.1 1.6-3.3 32.7 and over meters per second 0.0-0.2 5.5-7.9 Wind speed 51-13 35 i¥ 22 29 under 1 37-16 ¥I-E1 19-24 25 31 8.5 73 and over 1.3 Ę. 8-12 hqm under 1 ¦∓ ∓ 35 11-16 13 13 EE X 31-16 64 and over **48--55** Enots 17-21 7 01-1 ĩ Beau-fort ber of force Ξ 업 s, 0 64 ~ \$ 2

Note: Since January 1, 1985, weather map symbols have been based upon wind speed in knots, at five-knot intervals, rather than upon Beaufort number.

2.5

医静脉炎 计可能指示的复数形式

	WIND SEALAR MERAL	A N	D SEA SC	ALEP	0 8	PUL IND D	. L Y	<u>A R I 1</u>	EN SEA				IFA TI		
				7-		7		\rightarrow	WAVE HEIGI	1					<u>*///</u>
[1 Alexandress of the second se		- Ka		/	SAN .	E.			Z .¥	¢j		9	B S	
	st TT Discription 2)		DEL					1		بې بمور بې بمور	, L		5¥/5		7 3 3
		/	/		•⁄	*/	**/	÷.	بجحب محمو	, w	Ś	X Ý	AND A		* *
	San libo a mhrar,	U	Celm	Loss Han 1	1010	0	6	0	ŕ	<u>- `</u>	-	<u>کم</u>		-	
•	Ripples with the opperates of equiles are formed, but	}	Light Ales	1.3	1 2	0.05	0.04	0.10	we to 1.2 and	0.7	0.5	10.10		hā min	winds (and ation whole gale and storm
\vdash	without feem are sta. Small wavelete, etill shart but mars soundersade, ereate have		Light Breese	4.6	+-	0.18	0.29	0.17	64.7.8	20		474	<u> -</u>	19 min	tions and fatches are revely attained. Sees
1	a glossy appowence, but do nat brook.		Gantle Brosse	1 7 -10	115	0.4	1.0	1.2	0.4.5.0		1.4	20		1.2.20	are therefore not fully origin.
\vdash	asparanza. Pärkapa saattarad ukita karasa.			/	10	0.84	14		1.0-4.0		,,,	,,	10	2.4	a)A beavy bea
,		<u>+</u> ∙	}	<u> </u> .	112	14	$\frac{1}{1}$	7.	10.20	<u> </u>		1	{		i crownd this value i mgans that the willion tabulated
					<u> </u>	1.4			14.74				<u>"</u>		are at the contar of the Secular
	Small waves, becaming larger; fairly frequent white herees.	4	Hadarate Branza	11-14	<u> </u>	20			14.7.4			<u> "</u>			1999000.
1				ļ	-			•	1.37.0	3.6	•	_ "		»	b)For such high winds, the sens are
		}	}			<u></u>	•.•	3.0	2.0-8.0	•.3	4	"	40	0.6	create blow off, and the water and the
4					-	3-6	6.1	7.6	2.5.10.0	7.2	5.1	90		I.J	ele mis.
{	Address uses, taking a more pronounced long term; many white harness are formed. (Channe of some spray),	3	Prest Greese	17-21	"	4.3	6.9	8.7	2.8.10.4		5.4	*		₽.2	DEncyclopedia of Neutical Knowledge,
		,	}		20	\$-0	<u>+0</u>	10	3.0.11.1	4.1	5.7	111 	75	10	W.A. McEwon and A.H. Lowis, Carnell
,					22	6.6	10	13	3-4-12-2	1 .9	• •	או	100	12	Cantridge, Haryland 1953, p. 483
\square	Large waves begin to farm; the white feam create are mare	4	Strong Bronzo	22-27	24	7.9	12	16	3.7.13.5	•7	48	160	130	14	1)
					24.5	1. 2	13	17	3-8-13-6	••	7.0	161	140	115	Volume II, Admirelry, Lendon, H.M. Stationery
•		,	}	Ĺ	26	9.6	15	20	4.0-14.5	10.5	74	100	160	17	Office, 1952, pp. 717-718
					28	н	18	23	4-3-15.5	11.3	7.4	212	230	20	3)Proctical Nothada for observing and fore-
	See heaps up and white form from breaking waves begins to be blown in streaks along the direction of the wind.	1	Maderate Galo	28-33	ж	14	22	28	4.7-16.7	12,1	8.6	250	280	23	Losting Ocean Hoves, Pierson, Houmson,
	(Spindrift begins to be seen).				30.5	14	23	75	4-8-17.0	12.4	8.7	84	290	24	Jamps, N.Y. Univ, College of Engin, 1953.
					22	16	26	ນ	5.0-17.5	12.9	9.1	285	340	27	
1					н	19	બ	24	5-5-18-5	13.6	9.7	12	420	8	
			C. 101		34	21	25	44	5.8-19,7	14.5	10.3	ж)	500	ж	
	accountry new waves as prevent company experiences where spindelify. The form is blown in well method stronks clong the direction of the wind. Spray effects	•	1 70 SA (4010	14-40	17	23	37	44.7	6-20.S	14.9	10.5	174	530	37	
	vlaibility.				ж	25	40	50	6.2-20.8	15.4	10,7	392	-00	ж	
					40	71	45	58	4.5-21.7	16.1	11.4	44	710	42	
					42	31	50	4	7-23	17.0	12.0	112	830	47	1
	High waves. Dense stracks of fews along the direction of the wind. See being to coll. Visibility offerend.	+	Yong Galo	41-47	4	ж	54	n	7-24-2	17.7	12.5	-	140	<u>n</u>	
					. 4	40	64	61	7-25	18.4	13.1	590	1110	57	
			~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~		4	4	л	90	7.5-26	19.4	12.0	450	1250	43	
	Yery high weres with long everhanging creats. The resulting faim is in great patches and is blown in doma.	10	Whale Gate*	44-55	50	49	78	=	7.5-27	20.2	14.3	700	1420	69	1
	white streaks along the direction of the wind. On the whole the surface of the gas takes a white approxime.	1			\$1.5	52	83	106	\$-26-2	20.8	14.7	716	1560	n	
,	the roting of the set becames beev and sherblike. Visibility is affected.				1	54	87	110	8-28-5	21.0	14.8	750	1610	75	
					ш	59	*	121	8-29.5	21.8	15.4	810	1800	<b>8</b> 1	
	Eucoptions II + high waves (Small and medium stand ships	)	}			4	103	110	6.5-31	22.4	16.3	910	2100		
	man we a long runs to star to view babind the waves.) The oos is completely covered with long while petches of feam lying sharp the department of the wind. Everywhere the addres	11	Siwa*	54-43		- n	114	1/*	10-17	24	12.0	985	2500	101	
	of the ways cooses ore blown into froth. Visibility affected.		Muncheses*	44.71	1	السب الس أ	الأمور (	140	10,495	1/24					4
	an most with team and spray. See completely while with driving spray; visibility wary sociausly affected.	12	FNBT 12 046 *	64-/1	1.4	, 80%)	) (2 <b>1</b> °)	3 166*/	10-(35)	(24)	(11)	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	~	l
1															<u> </u>

This table compiled by Wilbur Marks, Devid Tayler Hedel Basin 

# TABLE 4 WAVE AND SEA SCALE FOR FULLY ARISEN SEAS (NEUMANN)

14

ari

See		SIGNIFICANT	WAVE HEIGHT	
State	ME	TERS	FE	ET
Number	Old	New	Old	New
0 - 1	0.0 - C.6	0.0 - 0.1	0 - 1.9	0 - 0.3
2	0.6 - 1.3	0.1 - 0.5	1.9 - 4.1	.3 - 1.6
3	1.3 - 1.7	0.5 - 1.25	4.1 - 5.7	1.6 - 4.1
4	1.7 - 2.2	1.25 - 2.5	5.7 - 7.4	4.1 - 8.2
5	2.2 - 4.0	2.5 - 4.0	7.4 - 13.0	8.2 - 13.1
6	4.0 - 6.3	4.0 - 6.0	13.0 - 20.8	13.1 - 19.7
7	6.3 - 12.3	6.0 - 9.0	20.8 - 40.3	19.7 - 29.5
8	12.3 - 18.8	9.0 ~ 14.0	40.3 - 61.5	29.5 - 45.5
>8	>18.8	>14.0	>61.6	>45.5

TABLE 5OLD (NEUMANN, PIERSON - MOSKOWITZ) VERSUS NEW (WMO)SEA STATE DEFINITIONS

William March 19 March 19

лĦ

Marine and all the mound the

Period (Sec)	Most	Probable***	I	7.5	7.5	8.8	9.7	12.4	15.0	16.4	20.0	t to another	
Modal Wave		Range**	I	3.3 - 12.8	5.0 - 14.8	6.1 - 15.2	8.3 - 15.5	9.8 - 16.2	11.8 - 18.5	14.2 - 18.6	18.0 - 23.7	seas. To conver	e height range. imatology.
Percentage	Probability	01 264 31416	0	7.2	22.4	28.7	15.5	18.7	6.1	1.2	<0.05	fully-developed	eriods given wav ed in Hindcast Cl
Wind	ots)*	Mean	æ	8.5	13.5	19	24.5	37.5	51.5	59.5	>63	to generate	entile for pe cies include
Sustained	Speed (Kn	Range	0 - 6	7 - 10	11 - 16	17 - 21	22 - 21	28 - 47	48 - 55	56 - 63	>63	above surface 1	num is 95 perce central frequen
Wave	با 1	Mean	90.0	0.3	0.88	1.88	3.25	ſ	7.5	11.5	>14	l at 19.5 m V ₁ (H ₂ /19.5)	e and maxin iated with (
Significant	Height (r	Range	0 - 0.1	0.1 - 0.5	0.5 - 1.25	1.25 - 2.5	2.5 - 4	4 - 6	6 - 9	9 - 14	>14	t wind sustairied H- apply V- =	m is 5 percentile
	Sea State	Number	0 - 1	2	m	ব	ى م	9	7	80	8~	*Ambien altitude	***Based o

ł

į٨;

**Modal Wave Period (Sec)** 

# TABLE 6 ANNUAL SEA STATE OCCURRENCES IN THE OPEN OCEAN NORTH ATLANTIC

Sea	Significant Height	Wave (m)	Sustained	Wind Motel*	Percentage	Modal Wave	Period (Sec)
State	uneign	/////		10(5)	Probability		
Number	Range	Mean	Range	Mean	of Sea State	Range**	Probable ***
0 - 1	0 - 0.1	0.05	0 - 6	3	0	ł	I
2	0.1 - 0.5	0.3	7 - 10	8.5	4.1	3.0 - 15.0	7.5
ß	0.5 - 1.25	0.88	11 - 16	13.5	16.9	5.2 - 15.5	7.5
4	1.25 - 2.5	1.88	17 - 21	19	27.8	5.9 - 15.5	8.8
Q	2.5 - 4	3.25	22 - 27	24.5	23.5	7.2 - 16.5	9.7
g	4 - 6	2	23 - 47	37.5	15.3	9.3 - 16.5	13.8
۲	6 - 9	7.5	48 - 55	51.5	9.1	10.0 - 17.2	13.8
œ	9 - 14	11.5	56 - 63	59.5	2.2	13.0 - 18.4	18.0
<b>8</b> A	>14	>14	>63	>63	0.1	20.0	20.0
*Ambient altitude, **Ninimur ***Based o	t wind sustainec H ₂ , apply V ₂ = n is 5 percentile n periods associ	1 at 19.5 m V ₁ (H ₂ /19.5) and maxin iated with c	above surface 1 1/7 num is 95 perce sentrai frequenc	to generate entile for pe cies include	fully-developed s eriods given wave ed in Hindcast Cii	eas. To conver height range. matology.	t to another

(

にいいたがった

謚

TABLE 8 ANNUAL SEA STATE OCCURRENCES IN THE OPEN OCEAN NORTHERN HEMISPHERE

![](_page_25_Picture_0.jpeg)

200

ş,

e si

FIGURE 1 One Comparison of U.S. and Soviet Destroyer Seakeeping Soviet Kotlin-class destroyer on right, U.S. 7:0 class on left

![](_page_26_Figure_0.jpeg)

1

<u> 32 A</u>

FIGURE 2 OUTLINE OF SEAKEEPING PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY

14

- - Samerala .

9.52

. Same

and an his and the House Heles

![](_page_27_Figure_0.jpeg)

FIGURE 3 TYPICAL PERFORMANCE FIGURE OF MERIT (COMPARISON OF SHIP VTO FUNCTIONAL CAPABILITY)

(d.S.)

![](_page_28_Figure_0.jpeg)

![](_page_29_Figure_0.jpeg)

![](_page_29_Figure_1.jpeg)

لنحتك ويعفد

1.121 - 198799 N

![](_page_30_Figure_0.jpeg)

FIGURE 6 MODAL WAVE PERIOD RANGES VERSUS SEA STATE FOR THE NORTH ATLANTIC AND NORTH PACIFIC

Rite 1067

![](_page_31_Figure_0.jpeg)

MOST PROBABLE MCDAL PERIODS VERSUS SEA STATE FOR THE NORTH ATLANTIC, NORTH PACIFIC AND NORTHERN HEMISPHERE

25

*

![](_page_32_Figure_0.jpeg)

FIGURE 8 ESTIMATED MODAL WAVE PERIODS FOR THE NORTHERN HEMISPHERE

1

کنی ا

: ; ; ;